
Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Planning Commission Special Meeting 

Agenda 
May 11, 2021 • 6:30 PM • Virtual Meeting* 

 

10615 Green Mountain Falls Road, Green Mountain Falls, Colorado 80819 

 

  

 ITEM  
DESIRED 

OUTCOME 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTION TO THE AGENDA 
 

3. 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
April 27, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 

Action 
Recommended 

4.  PUBLIC COMMENT** 
 

 NEW BUSINESS 
 

5. FEN2021-01 Fence Permit at 10310 Mountain Avenue. John Gustafson, Owner.  
Action 
Recommended 

6. 
Concept Proposal to Purchase Town of Green Mountain Falls Land at 7035 Oak Street. Clay 
Gafford, Owner 7045 Oak Street. 

Action 
Recommended 

7. 
Resolution 2021-10, Consideration of and Recommendation to the Board of Trustees on a 
Memorial Bench and Brick Program 

Action 
Recommended 

 OTHER BUSINESS 
 

8. 
Trustee Liaison Report on Board Action and Matters of Comprehensive Plan Implementation. 
Katharine Guthrie, Board of Trustees Planning Liaison 

Information  

9. Housekeeping and Announcements 
Information  

10. Adjournment 
 

 

*Zoom Meeting Link 
Meeting ID:  814 997 1940 
Passcode:  774139 
**Questions about public comment can be sent to GMF staff: staff@gmfco.us; planner@gmfco.us 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
Planning Commission Members: 
Todd Dixon, Chair  
Lamar Matthews, Commissioner  
Sean Ives, Commissioner  
Gregory Williamson, Vice Chair  
Paul Yingling, Commissioner  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8149971940?pwd=THlXK1daSzNxTmowcGtZZW5kOFBoZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8149971940?pwd=THlXK1daSzNxTmowcGtZZW5kOFBoZz09
mailto::%20staff@gmfco.us;%20planner@gmfco.us
mailto::%20staff@gmfco.us;%20planner@gmfco.us




 

Page 1 

MEETING MINUTES 

Planning Commission 

April 27, 2021 

6:30 p.m. Zoom Virtual Meeting  

Commissioners Present: Todd Dixon, Sean Ives, Lamar Matthews, Gregory Williamson, Paul Yingling 

Commissioners Absent:  

Ex Oficio Member: Mayor Jane Newberry 

GMF Staff: Julia Simmons, Zachary Trainor 

Link to Zoom Video Recording 

Agenda Item Motion/Discussion M/S TD SI LM GW PY JN 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Dixon called the 
meeting to order at 6:30 PM. Role 
call as reflected, above. 

 

2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, & CORRECTIONS TO THE 
AGENDA 

Item #6 was deleted from the 
agenda. 

       

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES- March 9th, 2021 Meeting.  

Motion to approve the minutes of 
the March 9, 2021 meeting as 
posted. Motion passes unanimously.  

GW/LM Y Y Y Y Y  

4. Public Comment 

Sherri Hopper spoke about the 
purchase of the fire house and 
turning it into a wedding venue.   
 
Chairperson Dixon responded 
regarding the process and possible 
concerns. 
 
Commissioners Williamson, 
Matthews, and Yingling commented 
in support of the project. 
 
 

       

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YaNzlRoU1Hs&t=3s


Page 2 

5. Public Workshop and Community Input Meeting - 
Zoning and Land Use Code Rewrite. 

Staff presented highlights from 
survey results. Discussion notes are 
included below the meeting 
minutes. 

       

6. Trustee Liaison Report on Board Action and Matters 
of Comprehensive Plan Implementation. 
Katharine Guthrie, Board of Trustees Planning 
Liaison 
 Deleted from Agenda 

                

7. Housekeeping and Announcements 

After discussion, the Planning 
Commissioners set May 25th as the 
target date for the presentation of 
the annotated outline. Chairperson 
Dixon commented that if the outline 
is not ready, then the June 8th 
regular meeting could be the date 
for the presentation. 

       

8. Adjournment 
Chairperson Dixon adjourned the 
meeting at 7.49 PM. 

       

         

 

Discussion Notes 

 

1. What is one topic from the PowerPoint presentation that resonated with you? What are some challenges you have experienced with 

the existing code; what would make it easier to “do the right thing?” 

Public comment 

• Ann Esch Brought up the topic of sewer systems. The age of the cess pools are a looming problem. Does GMF have any further 

regulations? This concern resonated with her.  

o Chairperson Dixon agreed that this is also a concern for him and talked about replacement concerns and El Paso County and 

Teller County Health Departments for requirements. 



Page 2 

• David Douglas: Spoke about concerns around fire mitigation and the need for enforcement. He brought up that many old structures are 

not hardened against fire and the need for clarity about what is reasonable to require people to harden their property. Fuels mitigation 

on public property. He emphasized the need for practical and reasonable for frontline defense.  

• Chairperson Dixon commented about Wildland Urban Interface code policies or ordinance presented to the Planning Commission.  

• Rocco Blasi talked about how some people may be unaware there is a code and that the Town should improve visibility and encourage 

outreach and education to make people aware of the code. He said that the code should be simple and enforceable. Mr. Blasi brought 

up the concern for liability for GMF if code is not enforced. He spoke in support of moving some items to administration approval and 

that health and safety are priority. Mr. Blasi suggested that the town look to the compressive for guidance. He also commented in 

support of taking inventory of cess pools and available land for development.  

• Commissioner Ives shared that people that speak to him around town are frustrated with the process of permitting that is slow due to 

requirements and that simplifying the code would be a positive development.  

What are challenges with the existing code? 

 No public comment on this topic. 

• Commissioner Williamson commented that there are roughly 700 homes in GMF and he estimated that 80% are more than 50 years old. 

He talked about how that relates to fire issues and the rights of property owners. He spoke about how the town government exists to 

serve the community and the need to be sensitive to existing conditions. How can we help people mitigate to the best of their ability? 

Commissioner Williamson again emphasized the need to understand the community and ask how we can best support people and that 

we should be consistent with what we do. 

• Chairperson Dixon talked about his recent building challenges including septic system, topography, and retaining wall. He commented 

about the wait time with the town government and engineering, which delayed the process for a couple months. 

• Chairperson Matthews commented that people are trying to do the right thing and are frustrated with the process. She spoke about 

needing to take some of the bureaucracy out of the process to make it easier for businesses and people to comply with the regulations. 

• Mayor Newberry brought up the point that ideas are coming up that aren’t a part of the Land Use Code or enforcement, and that the 

discussion should focus on the Land Use Code. She spoke in support of simplification of the code and administrative approval and for 

clear guidelines so that everyone understands without gray areas. 

2. What would make it easier to do the right thing? 



Page 2 

• Ann Esch asked the question, Is a variance an ordinance or a code?   

o Nina Williams answered that a variance is permission to make an exception to the land use code with strict standards and should 

be used very rarely.  

• Ann commented that variances are common here in Green Mountain Falls. She suggested that variances might be handled 

administratively in some cases.  

Commissioners 

• Commissioner Yingling said that when explaining an issue to landowners, it could be done from the standpoint of how an action impacts 

others in the community and the environment as opposed to just having to follow the rules and having bureaucracy for bureaucracy’s sake.  

Do you agree with the preliminary survey results: some applications should be approved administratively (using specific guidelines) 

instead of requiring a public hearing process? 

• Rocco Blasi stated that 17 responses to survey is not a good sample size and that hundreds of other people have a stake in the result and 

that survey responses all over the map. Mr. Blasi said that it is difficult to make accurate generalizations.  

• Commissioner Matthews commented about simplification by moving some items to administrative approval.  

• Commissioner Yingling spoke about the code requirements for approval of decks and how deck approval can be accomplished by 

administration.  

• Commissioner Williamson brought up the Universal Building Code and how GMF is different from other geographic locations. Example: EPC 

code is not a good fit for our town. He commented that people love living in this town because of the historic and unique features. There is a 

need to rewrite the code but it has to address the specific needs of the properties that exist. Commissioner Williamson echoed the need to 

take inventory and the need to find out how many buildable lots there are as well as the age of existing homes. What happens when your 

deck or septic needs to be replaced? He brought up health and safety as priorities. In a universal sense there is not anything we can adopt 

that is already written that fits GMF so we should take a hard look and make sure what we write fits our community.  

• Ann Esch asked if Green Mountain Falls could override a county regulation?  If we get a variance from county? If cess pool fails you have to 

put in a septic system. She spoke about new technology and said that we are such a unique place in a valley. The idea of a looming cess pool 

problem was brought up. 



Page 2 

• Chairperson Dixon said that we have an opportunity to group things so can be reviewed administratively if possible. Decks and fences that 

don’t change the footprint, can this be done administratively? Pikes Peak Regional Building Department reviews for structural health and 

safety. He commented that we don’t have the expertise for the structural elements, so we rely on larger entities with larger staff for 

problems with more complicated technical issues. 

 

3. What types of housing and commercial development is most appropriate in GMF? Some themes that have been identified in 

preliminary surveys: density, building use and height, additional zoning designations, environmental constraints, parks and open 

space, natural hazards, tiny houses, incentivized commercial development. 

• Rocco Blasi commented that he was looking at Comprehensive Plan vision, which is an appropriately sized safe community home to a mix of 

various uses. One of the specific strategies is to Update Land Use code to allow higher downtown density, higher lot coverage and 

apartments above commercial spaces. Incentivize downtown businesses. He brought up the idea of tiny houses. Does it make sense to build 

a tiny house when you have to fit septic and have larger lot? He commented that economic growth needs to continue as the costs of services 

increase. 

• Chairperson Dixon commented that Rocco had made a good point regarding the limiting factors- which includes the cost of building, the 

price of lumber increase, and the limiting factor of sewage.  The amount of land required for the septic system was roughly 1/3 of the 

building space. Not many lots can handle that space requirement. Hopefully, technology advances for smaller contained systems to meet 

requirements. A challenge of higher density is how to deal with wastewater and sewer system. Is it cost effective?  He also brought up the 

budget that we have for the rewrite project, which he believes is roughly around $70,000.  

• Commissioner Matthews asked if the Planning Commission will receive updates on the status of the budget on the project. She requested 

updates on the budget during upcoming meetings. 

• Rocco Blasi shared his concerns that the schedule seems aggressive.  

• Chairperson Dixon answered that the plan is to get it to the Board of Trustees by the fall and the budget is a concern and wants to stay 

within the existing Planning Commission Meeting schedule, but is open to more special meetings if needed.  

• Nina Williams explained next steps. 

• After discussion, the Planning Commissioners set May 25th as the target date for the presentation of the annotated outline. Chairperson 

Dixon commented that if the outline is not ready, then the June 8th regular meeting could be the date for the presentation.  





 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  GMF Staff 

Date: May 5, 2021 

Re: Fence Permit FEN2021-01 at 10310 Mountain Lane 

 

Background 

The Applicant, John Gustafson, is requesting the Planning Commission’s consideration for a fence permit 
at the subject address.  
Planning Commission Recommended Actions: 

• Public hearing  
• Review proposed project for compliance with Green Mountain Falls Zoning and Land Use Code  
• Approve, approve subject to conditions, or disapprove 

Discussion 

Section 16-501 Purpose 
The purpose of this Article is to establish the necessary criteria, standards and limits on all forms of 
fencing and to preserve the natural beauty of the Town. It is intended, by the provisions of this Article, to 
accomplish the following:  
(1)  To promote attractive residential and commercial areas by regulating types of fences;  
(2)  To reduce inappropriate fences and the hazards which may be attributed to them; and  
(3)  To blend fences harmoniously with the Town's natural and historic assets. Sec. 16-305. - R-1 5,000  
 

Sec. 16-504. - Construction standards and maintenance.  
(a)  Setback. Setbacks are not required for fences.  
(b)  Height.  
(1)  Front yard. Any solid or lattice fence shall have a maximum height of forty-eight (48) inches. Any 
open fence shall have a maximum height of seventy-two (72) inches, with the exception of barbed wire 
fences in commercial and industrial areas.  
(2)  Side or back yard. Maximum height of any fence shall be seventy-two (72) inches, with the 
exception of barbed wire fences in commercial and industrial areas.  
(c)  Materials.  
(1)  Fencing materials may include masonry, wood or metal. Corrugated metal is specifically 
prohibited.  
(2)  Natural fencing may include hedge rows, rock, adobe or tree lines.  
(d)  Vision at corners. On corner lots, no fence, retaining wall, shrub, tree or similar obstruction shall 
be erected or maintained which obstructs the traffic vision.  



FEN2021-01 Staff Memo 
Page 2 

(e)  Maintenance. All fences shall be properly maintained at all times to the satisfaction of the Board of 
Trustees. The Board of Trustees has the authority to order the painting, repair, rebuilding or removal of a 
fence and accompanying landscaping which constitutes a hazard to safety, health or welfare by reason of 
inadequate maintenance, construction or dilapidation. Notification shall be by certified mail. If, within 
thirty (30) days, the maintenance orders are not complied with, the Board of Trustees may order the fence 
removed at the owner's expense under the provisions of Subparagraph 16-708(n)(5)b. These maintenance 
standards refer to all fences, new as well as those in existence at the time of enactment of the ordinance 
codified in this Article. 

The proposed fence construction details are outlined in the Applicant’s letter of explanation (attached). A 
solid cedar fence would extend 150’ from the front corner at Mountain Lane, and follow the side lot line 
with no setback distance. The R-1 10,000 subject property shares a side lot line with two R-1 5,000 
properties, as shown on the EPC Assessor’s site (attached). According to the survey dated 2004, the 
neighbor’s deck at 10285 Ute Pass encroaches on the Applicant’s property. At the time of this report, no 
public testimony has been received.  

The fence, as proposed, would not endanger public health nor obstruct traffic vision. Application 
requirements (§16-707) have been met once the Clerk/Treasurer receives permit payment of $125, mailed 
to GMF Town Hall on May 3, 2021.  

Conclusion 

Staff believes the proposed fence and recommends the Commission approve Fence Permit FEN2021-01 
without any conditions.  





FEN2021-01 

Letter of explanation from 4/3/21 email 

 

I don't have a construction schedule yet, this process is my first hurdle.  In all likelihood I'll get the same 
firm that did my last fence work, which the town approved as well.  And even if I can't get the contractor 
right away I'm not too worried - the last fence ended up being done in January 2016 in the snow.  I had 
them scheduled to work in October 2015 but the planning meetings got put off etc so then they put me 
off and took other jobs. 

I, and all affected neighbors, are zoned R1 not in a Hillside Overlay Zone.  Fence location is on the 
drawing, 6' solid cedar pickets, posts set in concrete, same as the other fence.  There is no traffic vision 
obstruction.  There is no setback, this is on the property line. 

 







8308410073

10310 MOUNTAIN LN
Total Market Value

$195,475

50 ft





 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  GMF Staff 

Date: May 5, 2021 

Re: Concept Proposal for Purchase of GMF Property at 7035 Oak Street 

Background 

The Applicant, Clay Gafford, is requesting the Planning Commission’s consideration of the attached 
proposal to purchase town property on Oak Street. Per GMF Municipal Code §11-116 – 11-120, a 
procedure must be established prior to the “second presentation” or formal proposal.  
Planning Commission Recommended Actions: 

• Public testimony 
• Review Applicant proposal and supplemental materials 
• Consider the requirement for PC to establish an application checklist, §11-118 
• Consideration of the feasibility of the proposal to purchase land from GMF 

Discussion 

Sec. 11-116. - Factors to be considered in sale of public land.  
The following factors shall be considered in review by the Planning Commission and Board of Trustees of any 
request to purchase public lands. Said factors shall not be exclusive, however:  
(1)  Conformation with the Town Comprehensive Plan;  
(2)  Adverse effects to the Town if property is sold;  
(3)  Benefits to the Town if property is sold.  
 
Sec. 11-117. - Reasons for sale.  
The following reasons for sale of public land shall be deemed sufficient justification for such sale;  
(1)  Reduction in Town liability;  
(2)  Increase in tax base;  
(3)  Assistance to property owners who do not have clear title to their land due to an encroachment of their 
property upon public land.  
 
Sec. 11-118. - Presentations required to purchase public land.  
Anyone wishing to purchase public land owned by the Town will be required to make two (2) presentations to the 
Planning Commission, as further described below, as a precondition to seeking the Board of Trustees' agreement to 
said sale:  
(1)  The first presentation shall include clear identification of the land to be purchased and a discussion of the 
feasibility of the proposed easement (Step #1 - Concept Approval).  
(2)  The second presentation shall include the formal submittal requirements (Step #2 - Formal Submittal).  
(3)  After the required presentations, the Planning Commission will then make its recommendation to the Board of 
Trustees, which has final authority for approval or denial. Any decision to sell public land shall be by Ordinance 
passed by the Board of Trustees.  



(4)  The procedure for the first and second presentation to the Planning Commission shall be determined by the 
Planning Commission, which shall set forth guidelines in the form of check lists for preparation for said 
proceedings. Said guidelines shall be available to the public, and may be provided at the office of the Town Clerk.  
(5)  No second presentation will be scheduled before the Planning Commission until the guidelines for 
presentation as set forth in the document available to the public have been met. Review of said guidelines shall be 
made by the Town Clerk as a prerequisite to scheduling said presentation before the Planning Commission.  
 
Sec. 11-119. - Determination of fair market value for purchase.  
The fair market value for public land may be determined by the Board of Trustees on an annual basis. Said value 
shall be based upon the average square footage price of undeveloped but developable lots located within the 
boundaries of the Town. Said fair market value shall be applied to the sale of any public land, unless the Board of 
Trustees determines, after hearing evidence from the petitioning party, that said value is not appropriate in the case 
of a specific proposed purchase. If the petitioning party wishes the application of any other square footage price 
petitioning party shall bear any costs incurred in determining said applicable price.  
 
Sec. 11-120. - Decision not binding on future requests for purchase.  
No decision by the Board of Trustees to sell any public land shall be controlling on any subsequent request for sale 
of public land.  
(Ord. 92-04 §1)  

Town Clerk received the attached supplemental materials and request to purchase town property. The 
practice for two years has been for Planning, Clerk, and/or Town Manager to publish application 
checklists in lieu of the PC doing so. Town Staff forwarded the following basic checklist to the Applicant: 

1. Letter of intent and explanation 
2. Survey of the property  
3. Site plan with existing/proposed structures, use, ingress/egress, zoning, and floodplain 

Conclusion 

The request is an item of business for the Commission to establish the procedure for first and second 
presentations, Concept Approval and Formal Submittal (§11-118) and a checklist of supplemental 
materials the PC deems appropriate to request from each applicant seeking to purchase town property.  

Town Staff believes the three items, above, are a reasonable starting point and recommends the 
Commission adopt a similar checklist.  
 



8308101030

7035 OAK ST
Total Market Value

$9,975

50 ft



8308101094

7045 OAK ST
Total Market Value

$216,065

50 ft





























 

To: Planning Commission 

From:  GMF Land Use & Planning 

Date: May 6, 2021 

Re: GMF Memorial Bench Program Recommendations 

Background 

The Town Clerk has been working with other staff to create a memorial bench 

program for Green Mountain Falls (RESOLUTION NO. 2021-10). This work was started 

after the recent donation of a granite memorial bench from the Fox family to honor their 

late son, Chad. Staff researched other municipalities for examples of memorial benches 

and policies. 

Discussion

Options for types of memorial benches: 

 

Metal bench with plaque. 

Longmont, CO. 

 

Roughly $2,000 for bench and installation. 

 

 

 

 

El Paso County,CO. Metal bench with paint 

coating. 

$2,500. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Lafayette,CO.  DuMor recycled plastic product. $1,500. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Englewood, CO.  

 

As of 1/2021, the City will get a quote 

from the manufacturer per order and 

charge that cost plus $100 for concrete 

and labor.  

 

 

 

 

Aurora, CO. $2650 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Boulder 

• The style and size of the plaque is pre-determined based on the corresponding 

bench style common to the park location. 

• There are limitations on what can written on memorial benches and plaques 

including commercial advertising, political messaging, and offensive 

language. 

• Maintenance term and costs: 15 years or life of bench $3,000. 



3 

• There is a lower cost option of converting an existing bench into a memorial 

bench. 

El Paso County 

• Plaque wording is subject to review and approval by staff. 

• Maintenance and term 10 years estimated life of bench and costs $2,500. 

• County Parks reserves the right to relocate, permanently move, or replace the 

bench with a comparable bench / plaque due to master plan implementation, 

capital construction projects, or other extenuating circumstances. 

Lafayette 

• Donation of $1,500 to cover the cost of the bench, bronze plaque, and installation 

by City staff. 

• Benches are cedar colored, six-feet wide, and are a high quality, durable DuMor 

recycled plastic product.  

• Parks and Open Space staff will pre-determine appropriate locations for memorial 

benches along trails or in parks. 

Castle Rock (Same style as El Paso County) 

• Memorial plaques inset in the bench include the honoree’s name(s).  

• The cost for a Memorial Bench is $1,500, which includes shipping and handling, 

assembly, pouring of the concrete pad, and engraving of the memorial plaque. 

• The benches are 6 feet wide and have a powder-coat finish in the same color as 

other permanent fixtures in the area. Memorial plaques inset in the bench include 

the honoree’s name(s).  

Englewood 

• A dedication ceremony can be arranged after installation is complete.  

• Option of recycled plastic bench or steel bench. 

• Cost of the bench includes: bench, plaque, concrete pad and installation Park staff 

will perform all installations and maintenance.   

• Commemorative benches will not be replaced at the City of Englewood's expense 

in event of total loss due to vandalism or accidents.   

• The City of Englewood reserves the right to remove a commemorative bench in 

the event of design modifications made to City property.   

Aurora  

• Wording on plaques is limited, and may not include logos, quotes, or graphics. 

   

 

 

 

 



4 

Conclusion 

Staff offers the following recommendations:  

• Follow the example of Englewood and not have a flat donation amount, but 

rather receive a quote for each bench given the rising costs of materials and 

construction. 

• Offer more than one option of pre-approved memorial bench styles. 

• Reserve the right to remove or move a bench in the event of design 

modifications to town property. 

• Consider having a review and approval process and/or guidelines on the text 

that is included on plaques. 



 
5/7/2021 

HTTPS://GREENMTNFALLS.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/STAFF/SHARED DOCUMENTS/GENERAL/PLANNING/PLANNING 
COMMISSION/2021-05-11/RESOLUTION - MEMORIAL BENCH PROGRAM/MEMORIAL BENCH POLICY-R031621.DOCX 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-10 
 
TITLE:  A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN 

OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, COLORADO ADOPTING A 
MEMORIAL BENCH AND BRICK POLICY  

 
WHEREAS, the Town has received requests for memorial benches and memorial bricks 

from individuals desiring to have such benches and bricks placed on Town property to 
commemorate loved ones in the Town;  

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has identified a need to create a memorial bench and 
brick policy so memorial benches and bricks can be purchased to memorialize a loved one on 
Town property; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees, together with Town staff, has established rules 
governing the purchase and location of memorial benches and bricks on Town property.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, COLORADO, THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Memorial Bench and Memorial Brick Policy, attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, is hereby adopted as the memorial bench and brick policy for the Town. 

INTRODUCED, READ and PASSED this ___ day of Month, 2021. 
 
 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, 
 COLORADO 

       
______________________________ 
Jane Newberry, Mayor 

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________                                                          
Matthew Gordon, Town Clerk 
  



 
5/7/2021 

HTTPS://GREENMTNFALLS.SHAREPOINT.COM/SITES/STAFF/SHARED DOCUMENTS/GENERAL/PLANNING/PLANNING 
COMMISSION/2021-05-11/RESOLUTION - MEMORIAL BENCH PROGRAM/MEMORIAL BENCH POLICY-R031621.DOCX 

 
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
 

Memorial Bench and Memorial Brick Policy 
 
Members of the public may apply to the Town for placement of a memorial bench or memorial 
brick at several locations throughout the Town, including the Gazebo Lake Park.  Anyone wishing 
to donate a memorial bench or brick must submit a completed and signed application to the Town 
Clerk on a form provided by the Town.  Following receipt of an application, the Town will contact 
the applicant to discuss potential locations, and whether the applicant wishes to move forward with 
the donation based on this discussion.  The following conditions apply:  
 

1. The cost of a memorial bench or brick shall be set by the Board of Trustees by 
resolution, and shall be included on the Town's fee schedule.  Cost of a memorial bench 
shall include the bench, a 4" x 6" bronze plaque with up to a maximum of three lines 
of text, a concrete pad, and installation.  Costs of a memorial brick shall include a 
standard brick approximately 3-5/8″ x 2-1/4″ x 8″ and up to a maximum of two lines 
of engraved text, and installation.  Only the Town or an approved contractor of the 
Town may install memorial benches or bricks.  The Town may provide for several 
bench or brick styles or materials when setting the fee for a memorial bench or brick. 

2. Applicants may request a specific location for a memorial bench or brick in the Town, 
but ultimate placement shall be at the sole discretion of the Town Public Works 
Department, in consultation with the Town Manager. 

3. No application will be finally approved until payment for the memorial bench or 
memorial brick is received by the Town.  The Town reserves the right to accept or 
decline any application without stated reason. 

4. Once a memorial bench or brick has been ordered for a particular approved application, 
the payment is nonrefundable.  

5. All memorial bench and brick donations are subject to park rules established by the 
Town. 

6. Memorial benches and bricks are owned and maintained by the Town.  Memorial 
benches or bricks will not be replaced at the Town's expense in event of total loss due 
to vandalism, natural events, or accidents.  In such event, donors of a memorial bench 
or bricks, or family of those commemorated by the memorial bench or brick, may 
arrange with the Town for repair or replacement at the donor or family's expense.   

7. The Town reserves the right to move or remove a memorial bench or brick at its sole 
discretion in the event of design modifications made to Town property, or if the Town 
determines if a bench or brick is no longer usable or has reached the end of its useful 
life.  In the event of removal, the Town may make reasonable efforts to return the 
memorial bench, plaque, or brick to the donor or family of the person commemorated 
by the bench or brick but shall be under no obligation to do so.  

8. Submittal of a memorial bench or brick application is an acknowledgement of this 
policy.   


	Agenda - May 11, 2021 Public Meeting
	Meeting Minutes and Public Comments
	FEN2021-01 Fence Permit
	Letter of explanation and site plans

	7035 Oak Street - Staff Memo
	Request to Purchase Town Property - Gaffortd, Clay

	Memorial Bench and Brick Policy Staff Report
	Ashley Whitworth Presentation



